
City of Mora 
Kanabec County, Minnesota 

Meeting Agenda 
City Council 

 
Mora City Hall 
101 Lake St. S 

Mora, MN 55051 

 
 

 

Tuesday, July 20, 2021 6:30 PM Mora City Hall 
 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Roll Call 
3. Adopt Agenda (No item of business shall be considered unless it appears on the agenda for the meeting. Council members may add 

items to the agenda prior to adoption of the agenda.) 
4. Consent Agenda (Those items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be acted upon by 

one motion under this agenda item. There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Council Member so requests, in which 
event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered immediately after the adoption of the consent agenda.) 

a. Joint City Council/PUC Work Session Minutes – June 14, 2021 
b. Joint City Council/ HRA Board Work Session Minutes – June 15, 2021 
c. Regular Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2021 
d. June 2021 Claims 
e. Gambling Permit – Mora Lions Club 
f. Accept Restricted Donations 
g. Accept Letter of Resignation – Firefighter  
h. Business License Renewals 
i. Gambling Permit – MN Deer Hunters Association Snake River  
j. Special Event Permit Application – 2021 Mora Fly-In 
k. Special Event Permit Application – 2021 Fall Fest 

 
5. Open Forum (Individuals may address the council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. There is a maximum of fifteen 

(15) minutes set aside for open forum. A maximum of three (3) minutes is allotted per person. The City Council will take no official action on 
items discussed at the forum, with the exception of referral to staff for future report.) 

 
6. Special Business 

None 
 

7. Public Hearings 
None 

 
8. New Business 

a. 2022 KCSO Law Enforcement Contract 
b. Building Official Services Agreement 
c. Park Board Resignations and Discussion 
d. 2021 Trail Plan Update 
e. Kanabec County Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update – Request for Council Representative 

 
9. Old Business 

a. Housing and Redevelopment Authority Board Appointment 
 

10. Communications 
a. Kanabec County Agricultural Society Correspondence  
b. KCSO Monthly Report – June 2021 
c. MAFD Monthly Report – June 2021 
d. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – July 7, 2021 

 
11. Reports 

a. City Administrator 
b. Councilmember Anderson 



c. Councilmember Broekemeier 
d. Councilmember Mathison 
e. Councilmember Shepard 
f. Mayor Skramstad 

 
12. Adjournment 



Joint City Council/Public Utilities Commission Work Session Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

                                                         

Page 1 of 2  

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Alan Skramstad and Public Utilities Commission Chair Greg 
Ardner called to order the joint work session of the Mora City Council and Public Utilities Commission at 
4:00pm on Monday, June 14, 2021, in the city hall council chambers. 

 
2. Roll Call: City Council Members Present: Mayor Alan Skramstad, Jody Anderson, Jake 

Mathison, and Kyle Shepard 
Absent: Sadie Broekemeier 
Public Utilities Commission Present: Chair Greg Ardner and Brett Baldwin 
Absent: Ryan Christianson 
Staff Present: City Administrator/Utilities General Manager Lindy Crawford and City 
Accountant Sara King 

3. Adopt Agenda: COUNCIL MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by Anderson, and 
unanimously carried to approve the agenda as presented.  
PUC MOTION made by Baldwin, seconded by Ardner, and unanimously carried to approve the 
agenda as presented.  

4. Housing & Redevelopment Authority of Mora (HRA):  

a. HRA Organizational Structure: Crawford recapped recent staffing events with the HRA 
which resulted in Crawford’s appointment by the HRA Board, as the interim executive 
director, causing Crawford to shift some focus from city administrator and utility general 
manager duties to some duties of the HRA executive director position, without clear 
direction from the Council or PUC and without compensation for the additional duties due 
to a lack of funding at the HRA.  

Discussion ensued regarding the possible merger of HRA staff with City and MMU staff 
and ways to fund the budget for staffing needs which included discussion of a possible 
PUC cash contribution.  

The council and PUC asked for a lookback of impacted staff time spent on HRA duties;  
Crawford was directed by the council and PUC to continue to divide time between the 
HRA, city, and utilities as practiced, and to continue tracking time spent on the HRA for a 
future backpay when possible.   

King reported 10 of 13 SMMPA community surveyed respondents contributed to their 
city’s general fund and explained the method those contributions took place.  

Discussion ensued regarding HRA operations in addition to specific staff positions possibly 
needed and how best to streamline a merger and future operations.    

The council and PUC consensus was to agree move forward with a compensation and 
classification study and directed Crawford to bring a proposal to the joint July meeting. 

The council and PUC consensus was to move forward with a possible contribution from 
the PUC to the City in the form of a dollar amount, similar to the way the liquor store 
makes an annual contribution to the city and directed Crawford to return with a 
figure/amount for a possible contribution at the July joint meeting.  

 

 

 



Joint City Council/Public Utilities Commission Work Session Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

                                                         

Page 2 of 2  

5. Adjournment: COUNCIL MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously 
carried to adjourn at 5:18pm.  
PUC MOTION made by Baldwin, seconded by Ardner, and unanimously carried to adjourn at 
5:18pm. 

 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

Deputy City Clerk 



Joint City Council/Mora HRA Work Session Minutes 
June 15, 2021 

 

Page 1 of 1  

 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Pro-Tem Jody Anderson and HRA Board Chair Dennis 
Olson called to order the joint work session of the Mora City Council and Mora HRA at 5:00pm on 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021, in the city hall council chambers. 

 
2. Roll Call: City Council Members Present: Jody Anderson, Sadie Broekemeier, Jake Mathison, 

and Kyle Shepard 
Absent: Mayor Alan Skramstad 
HRA Board Members Present: Michael Anderson, Robert Jensen, Jake Mathison, and Dennis 
Olson 
Staff Present: City Administrator/Interim Executive Director Lindy Crawford and Deputy City 
Clerk Mandi Yoder 

3. Adopt Agenda: COUNCIL MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Mathison, and unanimously 
carried to approve the agenda as presented. HRA MOTION made by Jensen, seconded by 
Mathison, and unanimously carried to approve the agenda as presented.  

4. Housing & Redevelopment Authority of Mora (HRA):  

a. HRA Organizational Structure: Crawford reported the City Council and Public Utilities 
Commission (PUC) met the previous night and discussed a potential merger of the City and 
HRA, how it would impact existing city staff, and the possible need for financial 
compensation to directly affected city staff if recommended by a compensation and 
classification study. 

Crawford presented a sample post-merger organization chart. Discussion ensued 
regarding HRA staffing needs, the organization chart, and what steps had been taken in 
preparation for a potential merger in addition to future steps needed.  

Discussion ensued regarding the HRA board application status. 

The City Council and HRA consensus were for any options to remain on the table as a 
potential solution to cover the cost of staffing needs for HRA operations, including the 
possible need to sell Eastwood and/or implement an HRA levy.  

The consensus by both boards was to move forward with the plan to merge the HRA and 
City, for the time being.  

5. Adjournment: COUNCIL MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously 
carried to adjourn at 5:47pm. HRA MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Jensen, and 
unanimously carried to adjourn at 5:48pm. 

 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

Deputy City Clerk 





City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2021 

 

Page 1 of 4  

 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Pro-Tem Jody Anderson called to order the regular 
meeting of the Mora City Council at 6:30 PM on Tuesday, June 15, 2021, in the city hall council chambers. 

 
2. Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Jody Anderson, Sadie Broekemeier, Jake Mathison, and 

Kyle Shepard 
Absent: Mayor Alan Skramstad   
Staff Present: City Administrator Lindy Crawford, Community Development Director Beth 
Thorp, and Deputy City Clerk Mandi Yoder 

3. Adopt Agenda: MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried 
by the City Council to approve the agenda as presented. 

4. Consent Agenda: MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously 
carried by the City Council to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

a. Work Session Minutes – May 18, 2021 
b. Regular Meeting Minutes – May 18, 2021 
c. May 2021 Claims 
d. Gambling Permit – MAFD Relief Association 
e. Fire Hall Use Request – MAFD Relief Association  
f. Approve Hire of Administrative Services Director 
g. Accept Restricted Donations RESOLUTION NO. 2021-621 
h. Certification of Unpaid Utility Charges RESOLUTION NO. 2021-622 

5. Open Forum: No one spoke at open forum. 

6. Special Business: 

a. Resolution in Support – County-wide Broadband Internet: The council reviewed 
information presented regarding a county-wide broadband effort for high-speed 
internet services. The council approved the following motion because of the need for 
high-speed internet for all county residents. MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by 
Shepard, and unanimously carried by the City Council to approve the following 
resolution:  

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-623 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
PROVIDING SUPPORT FOR BROADBAND (HIGH SPEED) INTERNET SERVIICES  

IN KANABEC COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
(see attached) 

7. Public Hearings: There were no public hearings. 

8. New Business 

a. American Rescue Plan (ARP) and Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
(CSFRF/CLFRF): Crawford reported on March 11, 2021, in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic, President Biden signed into law the American Rescue Plan (ARP). Crawford 
expounded the ARP contained the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
program (CSLFRF) and each township, city, and county must apply in order to 
participate. The funds, if approved and as determined by the State of Minnesota, could 
be used for five objectives with the spending deadline of December 31, 2024:  

• Support public health expenditures, 



City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2021 

 

Page 2 of 4  

• Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, 
• Replace lost public sector revenue, 
• Provide premium pay for essential workers, 
• Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure.   

Crawford stated 50% of the CSLFRF funds would arrive in June/July 2021 with the 
remaining 50% arriving one year later. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by 
Shepard, and unanimously carried by the City Council to approve the following 
resolution:  

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-624 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA  

TO APPLY FOR THE CORONAVIRUS LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS  
ESTABLISHED UNDER THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 

(see attached) 

b. Minor Subdivision – Youngblom & McNally and Torrey: The council reviewed an 
application for a minor subdivision to split property from 930 Highway 65 South, owned 
by Torrey, and combine it with property at 207 Pine Grove Street, owned by Youngblom 
and McNally. Thorp explained the subdivision would bring the Youngblom and McNally 
property into compliance for frontage on public-right-of-way in addition to smoothing 
out the property lines and making them more useful. MOTION made by Shepard, 
seconded by Mathison, and unanimously carried by the City Council to approve the 
following resolution: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-625 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA APPROVING 
A MINOR SUBDIVISION AS REQUESTED BY THOMAS YOUNGBLOM & KRISTINE McNALLY 

AND THE JERRY F. TORREY TRUST & DIANE I. TORREY TRUST 
(see attached) 

c. Dog Park Rules & Text Amendment – Off-leash Dog Park regulations: The council 
reviewed rules for the proposed dog park and reviewed the amending text to city code 
to allow for regulations at the off-leash dog park. MOTION made by Broekemeier, 
seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried by the City Council to adopt the dog 
park rules as presented. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and 
unanimously carried by the City Council to adopt the following ordinance as presented:  

ORDINANCE NO. 483 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 90 (ANIMALS) AND CHAPTER 55 (PARKS, TRAILS 

AND OPEN SPACE) OF THE MORA CITY CODE TO INCLUDE  
REGULATIONS AT AN OFF-LEASH DOG PARK 

(see attached) 

d. Fencing for Dog Park: The council reviewed quotes presented for the fencing materials 
and installation at the dog park. Crawford recommended moving forward with the 
fence quote from Century because the fence included three (3) inch piping instead of 
the lowest bid with two and three-eighths inch piping.  

Discussion ensued regarding parking, usage of the overall area by other groups, 
handicap accessibility, and dogs on leashes. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded 
by Shepard, and unanimously carried by the City Council to accept the quote from 
Century Fence Company for fencing for the dog park.  



City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2021 

 

Page 3 of 4  

e. Public Building Rent Increase – 100 Union Street South: The council reviewed staff’s 
recommendation to increase the rent for the public building leased to the Vasaloppet, 
Inc., located at 100 Union Street South, from $200.00 per month to $210.00 per month, 
and begin September 1, 2021 with the lease agreement ending August 31, 2023; 
increasing the rate would be consistent with other public building rental rates. MOTION 
made by Mathison, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried by the City Council 
to approve a rent increase of 5% beginning September 1, 2021, for the public building 
leased to the Vasaloppet, Inc. and located at 100 Union Street South, as presented.        

f. Public Building Lease Agreement Renewal – 16 Lake Street North: The council 
reviewed a new lease agreement with Pine Technical and Community College (Pine 
Tech) for the building space at 16 Lake Street North, also know as the Teleworks Center. 
The new lease agreement was set to begin July 1, 2021, and end June 30, 2024; rent 
would be $210.00 per month and would increase 5% to $220.00 per month from July 1, 
2022, through June 30, 2024; Pine Tech would sublet the space to the Mora Area 
Chamber of Commerce in the duration of the lease. MOTION made by Shepard, 
seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously carried by the City Council to approve the 
proposed lease agreement with the State of Minnesota, by and through the Board of 
Trustees of Minnesota State Colleges and Universities on behalf of Pine Technical and 
Community Colleges for the public building located at 16 Lake Street North, as 
presented.   

g. COVID-19 Vaccination Efforts Discussion: The council discussed Park Board member 
concerns that the Mayor and City Administrator gave permission to Kanabec County 
Public Health to set up a small COVID-19 vaccination tent at Library Park during the 
June 10th Music in the Park (MITP) event without conferring with Park Board members. 
Discussion ensued regarding the parameters of authority of the Park Board, the Mayor, 
and the City Administrator. The Council consensus was to occasionally allow a non-
distracting vaccination tent, hosted by Kanabec County Public Health, to take place at 
some future Music in the Park events if Public Health requested. Anderson stated the 
city had been supportive of all Kanabec County Public Health and MDH’s efforts during 
the pandemic, and that the city would continue to do so. 

9. Old Business: There were no old business items to discuss. 

10. Communications: The following communications were reviewed. 

a. Airport Board Meeting Minutes – June 8, 2021: Anderson reported the hangar land 
lease agreement was ready to be presented to council at an August work session; fly-in 
donations had been received and was scheduled to take place the 19th of September 
with the Lions club hosting a pancake breakfast.  

b. MAFD Monthly Report – May 2021 
c. KCSO Monthly Report – May 2021 

11. Reports 

a. City Administrator: Crawford reported former City Clerk of 27 years, Dottie McCallum, 
passed away and flowers would be sent to her service on behalf of the city using 
monies from the general fund; the City EDA was moving forward with a promotional 
video in conjunction with the school district and the video would be filmed all day June 
24, 2021.  

b. Councilmember Anderson: Nothing new to report. 
c. Councilmember Broekemeier: Nothing new to report. 



City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2021 

 

Page 4 of 4  

d. Councilmember Mathison: Mathison reported being approached about concerns over 
excessive noise from the basketball court at Library Park late into the evening/early 
morning hours. It was declared the best option for a resolution was for residents to 
contact the Sheriff’s Office.      

e. Councilmember Shepard: Shepard stated a resident had asked about a stop sign for the 
corner of Grove Street and Bean Avenue and received complaints about fireworks at 
2:00-3:00am.  

f. Mayor Skramstad: Absent   

12. Adjournment: MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Mathison, and unanimously carried 
to adjourn at 7:18 PM.  

 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

Deputy City Clerk 















































Item No. 4f 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Sara B. King, Accountant 
RE: Accept Restricted Donations  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Mora has received the following donations: 
 

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: 
Made of MORA $100.00 
Kyle Shepard $425.00 
Estate of Roger A. Wegner $31,114.26 
Sadie Broekemeier (Hosley) $300.00 
Kyle & Jennifer McCauley $200.00 
Patti Miller $500.00 
First Citizens Bank $5,000.00 
  

  
As required by MN State Statute, restricted donations must be officially accepted by the City Council.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept donations by approving Resolution 2021-721. 
 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 2021-721 



Resolution No. 2021-721 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
ACCEPTING RESTRICTED DONATIONS  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mora is generally authorized to accept donations of real and personal property 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its citizens, and is specifically 
authorized to accept gifts. 
 
WHEREAS, the following persons and entities have offered to contribute the cash amounts set forth 
below to the city, and the terms or conditions of the donations, if any, are as follows: 
  

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION 
OF: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: 

Made of MORA $100.00 Donation for 2021 Music in the Park 
Kyle Shepard $425.00 Donation for Bench at Dog Park 
Estate of Roger A. Wegner $31,114.26 Donation to Mora Area Fire 

Department 
Sadie Broekemeier (Hosley) $300.00 Donation for Dog Park 
Kyle & Jennifer McCauley $200.00 Donation for Dog Park 
Patti Miller $500.00 Donation for Dog Park 
First Citizens Bank $5,000.00 Donation for Repairs to Vasaloppet 

(Depot) Building  
   

 
WHEREAS, all such donations have been contributed to the city for the benefit of its citizens, as allowed 
by law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is appropriate to accept the donations offered. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Mora, Kanabec County, Minnesota 
that: 
 

1. The donations described above are accepted and shall be used to establish and/or operate 
services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed by law. 

2. The city clerk is hereby directed to issue receipts to each donor acknowledging the city’s 
receipt of the donor’s donation. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member _______________ 
and seconded by Council Member ____________________. 

 
Voting for the Resolution: .......................  
Voting Against the Resolution: ...............  
Abstained from Voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  

 
Motion carried and resolution adopted this 20th day of July 2021. 

 
  ______________________________________  
ATTEST:  Al Skramstad, Mayor  

 ______________________________________  
 Lindy Crawford, City Administrator 



Item No. 4g 

Date: July 20, 2021  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Lindy Crawford, City Administrator 
RE: Accept Letter of Resignation – Firefighter 

SUMMARY 
Pete Morgan, firefighter for the Mora Area Fire Department, has submitted his letter of resignation. His last date 
of employment was June 21, 2021. Staff is already advertising for one firefighter, and will adjust the recruitment 
efforts to recruit two firefighters. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept Pete Morgan’s letter of resignation. 

Attachments 
Morgan Letter of Resignation 

 M E M O R A N D U M 





Item No. 4h 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Mandi Yoder, Deputy City Clerk 
RE: Business License Renewals 

 
SUMMARY 

The City Council will consider renewing business licenses for the term of one year starting September 1, 2021 
and ending August 31, 2022.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Per City Code §110, the City Council may annually grant business license renewals for certain types of 
regulated establishments in city limits. 
 
Listed below are existing businesses that have submitted business license renewal applications. All tobacco 
and alcohol license applications will be forwarded to the Minnesota Department of Public Safety, Alcohol and 
Gambling Enforcement division and the Minnesota Department of Revenue for State approval if they are 
granted City Council approval. 
 
At this time staff recommends approval of the business license renewal applicants as listed below.  
 

Business Name License(s) Type 

Federated Co-ops, Union Street Tobacco 

Federated Co-ops, Frontage Rd Tobacco 

North Country Bottle Shop Tobacco 

Coborn’s Tobacco & 3.2% Off-Sale 

Holiday Stationstores #186 Tobacco 

Jim’s Mille Lacs Disposal, Inc. Roll-Off Solid Waste 

Hartl Enterprises LLC, dba Ron’s Roll-Offs Roll-Off Solid Waste 

Diversified Enterprises, dba Vanderpoel Disposal Roll-Off Solid Waste 

LePage & Sons, Inc. Roll-Off Solid Waste 

CB&G LLC, dba Crystal Bar & Grill Liquor & Liquor Sunday, On-Sale 

El Jalisco Grill & Bar Mexican Restaurant Liquor & Liquor Sunday, On-Sale 



Memorandum 

  2 

Kev’s Depot Liquor & Liquor Sunday, On-Sale 

Kwik Trip #1037 3.2% Beer Off-Sale & Tobacco 

Marsuz LLC, dba Freddies Liquor & Liquor Sunday,  On-Sale 

Grand Event Center Liquor & Liquor Sunday, On-Sale 

Victory Lanes & Sports Bar, LLC Liquor & Liquor Sunday, On-Sale 

Massages by Corrine Massage Therapist 

 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Approve the compliant business license renewals as presented allowing the tobacco and alcohol 
applications to be submitted to the State of Minnesota for further approval. 

2. Deny any non-compliant business license applications. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Motion to approve the business license renewals as presented. 
 
 
Attachments 
None 







Item No. 4j 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jeff Krie, Activities and Recreation Coordinator  
RE: Special Event Permit Request – Mora’s Fly-in 

 
SUMMARY 
The Airport Advisory Board is requesting approval for a special event permit for their annual Fly-in event which 
will be held on Saturday, September 18, 2021 at the Mora Municipal Airport (JMR) from 8am-12pm. 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
This is an annual event.  Because it is a city sponsored event, there will be no fees collected and no special 
insurance is needed. A Facebook event will be created to promote the event. Any COVID-19 restrictions or 
guidelines set forth by the CDC and MN Department of Health will be adhered to.    
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

• The airport manager will be on site. 
• No event fees are required. 
• The Mora Lions Club will be submitting a copy of their MN Department of Health permit for serving 

food to the public. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve the special event permit for the Mora Fly-In at the Mora Municipal Airport on Saturday, 
September 18, 2021 pending submission of the Lions Club’s MN Department of Health permit. 
 
 
Attachments 
Special Event Permit Application 
Event Site Plan 
Event Flyer 

















Item No. 4k 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jeff Krie, Activities and Recreation Coordinator  
RE: Special Event Permit Request - Mora’s Fall Fest 

 
SUMMARY 
Staff is requesting approval for a special event permit for Mora’s Fall Fest, a city-sponsored event, which will 
be held on Saturday, September 25, 2021 in Library Park. 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
This is the third annual event which will be held at Library Park. Because it is a city sponsored event, there will 
be no fees collected and no special insurance is needed. Any food trucks will have paperwork submitted and a 
background check completed before taking part in this event. A Facebook event will be created to promote 
this event. Any COVID-19 restrictions or guidelines set forth by the CDC and MN Department of Health will be 
adhered to. 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

• Staff will be present on site. 
• No event fees are required. 
• All food vendors will receive mobile food unit licenses prior to the event, if they don’t have one 

already. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve the special event permit for Mora’s Fall Fest on Saturday, September 25, 2021. 
 
 
Attachments 
Special Event Permit Application 
Event Site Plan 
List of Schedule and Activities 





















Item No. 8a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Lindy Crawford, City Administrator 
RE: 2022 KCSO Law Enforcement Contract 

 
SUMMARY 
Attached is the 2022 proposed Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office (KCSO) law enforcement budget and contract. 
Staff requests the City Council act on the proposed budget as it is due by August 1, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Staff finds the 2022 proposed budget amount to be reasonable, and reflects a 1.5% increase from the 2021 
budget. 
 
The budget reflects five employees for 24-hour coverage. Capital items needing replacement in 2022 include a 
squad radar system in the amount of $4,000. 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Adopt the proposed 2022 budget as presented. 
2. Request modifications to the proposed budget, and a subsequent reduction in service. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept the 2022 KCSO law enforcement budget and contract as presented. 
 
 
Attachments 
2022 KCSO Law Enforcement Budget & Contract  





 
City of Mora Law Enforcement Services contract renewal (2022) 
 
Sergeant        $110614 
Deputies                   $380,057 
Law Enforcement Assistant         $62462 
Part Time Deputy         $38,000 
Capital Equipment     (+$4,000) (See Below) 
Vehicle repairs        $ 8,063 
Gas, oil, & misc.       $25,000 
Training, small equipment, repairs, & Office supplies  $15,117 
Taser lease                                                                                            $2,673 
Cell phones/MDT Service        $3,015    
Auto Insurance         $3,141  
        _____________ 
        Total   $648,914 
    Administration Charge 5%             $32,407 
        _____________ 
        Total   $681,321 
 
         
 
2017      +3.0% Total  $642,603 
 
2018      +1.5% Total  $652,242 
 
2019                                                                + 0%   Total                $652,242 
  
2020                 +2.1% Total                $666,300 
 
2021      +.68% Total  $670,859 
 
2022      +1.5%   $681,321 
      
 

      Additional Personnel:   
 

If it is necessary to add additional temporary law enforcement personnel for special 
events sponsored by the City, such personnel shall be hired by the Sheriff and supervised 
as by the Sheriff along with the Sheriff’s employees performing services under the terms 
of this Agreement.  The City agrees to reimburse the Sheriff for the additional personnel 
used at special events at the hourly overtime rate. The 2021 hourly overtime rate for the 
one deputy is $68.52 per hour.   
 
 
 



 
24 Hour Coverage: 
4 deputies and one sergeant for 24 hour seven day per week coverage with administrative 
and patrol supervision:  
 
Capital Improvement Line Items: 
 

- Squad Radar System ($4,000) 
 
 
 



ITEM

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 5000+ 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Squad $38,000
SMALL TOOLS
Squad Radios
Portable Radios $2,500 $2,500
Squad Lights $2,100
Squad Cage $1,500
Squad Camera $6,500 $6,500.00
Body Armor Vest
L.E. EQUIPMENT
Squad Switch System $1,000
Squad Siren Box & Siren $1,250
Squad Gun Lock $1,000
Computers $4,500.00 4,500 $4,500.00 $4,500.00
Long Guns
Squad Radar $4,000.00 $,4000.00 $4,500
TOTALS $4,000.00 $8,500.00 $11,500.00 $13,500.00 $55,850.00

Law Enforcement Capital Budget Plan through 2025

Under the Capital Equipment, a new squad car and the following equipment could be included in the 
Capital Equipment:  Squad Radio, Cage, In-car Camera, Switch System, Siren box, Gun Lock, Radar.  
When you purchase this equipment, you do not have to pay sales tax because the equipment is attached to 
the new squad car.

If the above listed equipment and small tools were damaged and/or unusable, we would purchase 
replacement equipment/tools under the training, small equipment, repairs, and office supplies category of 
the Law Enforcement Services Contract.





Item No. 8b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Lindy Crawford, City Administrator 
 Caleb Christenson, Building Official  
RE: Building Official Services Agreement  

 
SUMMARY 
The City Council will consider a proposal for building official services.  
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Mora has previously partnered with Milaca JPA for back-up building official services. Marshall Lind, 
building official for Milaca JPA, has accepted another position and resigned effective July 26, 2021. 
 
Lind was also the City of Mora’s state delegate for non-exempt (commercial) projects because Caleb 
Christenson is a building official limited, making him ineligible to perform those services. Christenson is eligible 
to complete residential and limited commercial projects until he becomes a fully certified building official, 
which will hopefully occur in the upcoming few months. 
 
Until Christenson is fully certified the City of Mora must contract with a fully certified building official. 
Therefore, staff has received proposals from two organizations able to fulfill our needs – Mid-MN Inspections 
LLC and Rum River Construction Consultants. While both are willing to provide their services and are qualified 
to assist us, Mid-MN Inspections came in cheaper at $65 per hour and the state rate of mileage starting at the 
Mora/Ogilvie city limits. For this reason, staff recommends the City Council accept their proposal and direct 
the city administrator to enter into a 12-month contract for services.  
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Accept the proposal from Mid-MN Inspections as presented. 
a. This is a budgeted expense. 
b. Over the next 12 months, staff will evaluate the services and relationship to determine if an 

agreement is needed once Christenson becomes fully certified.  
2. Do not accept the proposal, and direct staff appropriately.  

a. A delegate for non-exempt projects must be presented to the state within 15 days of Lind’s 
resignation date. The City must appoint a delegate for non-exempt projects by August 9, 
2021 to remain in compliance with the state building code.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept the proposal from Mid-MN Inspections LLC for building official services, and direct the city 
administrator to enter into an agreement for services.  
 
 
Attachments 
Proposal from Mid-MN Inspections LLC 





 

 

Compensation 

Hourly Rate: $65.00/hour 

Mileage: Current IRS Standard Mileage Rate (currently $.56/mile) 

Time & mileage will start from the corner of Hwy 47 & Hwy 23 in Ogilvie, MN. 

 

Billing: Billing will be done monthly and will be emailed by the 15th of each month. 

Office: We will keep our own office and can be reached for questions and inspection scheduling 

at 763-482-0446 and tad@midmninspections.com. 

Vehicles: We will provide our own vehicles for inspections. 

Insurance: We will provide our own insurance including general liability, professional liability, 

worker’s compensation and automobile insurance. 

 

This proposal is to provide supplemental subcontract building official services for a period of 12 

months. 

mailto:tad@midmninspections.com




Item No. 8c 

1 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Lindy Crawford, City Administrator 
RE: Park Board Resignations and Discussion  

 
SUMMARY 
The city council will accept two resignations from the park board and discuss options for the advisory board 
moving forward.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Over the past year we have been challenged with keeping a five-person park board. Since January 2020, there 
has been one vacancy which staff has been trying to fill with little to no avail. Earlier this month, two advisory 
board members resigned, Candice Brockner and Jenna Fore. These resignations leave just two advisory board 
members since there was already one vacancy. Without at least three members the advisory board cannot 
meet nor conduct business. Meanwhile, staff received an application to fill one of the vacant positions. If 
appointed, the board will still have two vacancies, but the board could meet and conduct business. 
 
After accepting the two resignations, the city council should discuss and decide what to do about the three (or 
two) vacancies. The park board is discussed in Mora City Code, attached, and states that: 
 
The board shall be composed of five members appointed by the City Council, each of whom shall be residents, 
property owners, or business owners in the city and each of whom shall be appointed for terms of three (3) 
years.  Members of the Board appointed from membership of the City Council shall serve one (1) year terms 
expiring December 31 of each year. 
 
Per City Code, the duties of the park board include: 
 
(A)   The Park Board shall have the duty of advising the City Council concerning the operation, maintenance, 
control and planning for all of the lands, properties and facilities now owned or hereafter acquired by the city 
for park or recreation purposes. 
(B)   Specific tasks to be accomplished by the Board include the following: 

(1)   Complete and annually update a comprehensive park and recreational facilities plan; 
(2)   Create and annually update a ten (10) year park and recreation operation plan; 
(3)   Develop and annually update a list of options to be selected and implemented as funding may 
become available; 
(4)   Maintain liaison with the Boards of Supervisors of surrounding townships, with the  Community 
Education Committee, the Mora Area Youth Recreation Association, and other organizations which 
may be operating park or recreation programs similar to those operated by the city; 
(5)   Advise the Council as to staffing requirements for the park and recreation programs of the 
city.  The Board may recommend full-time, part-time or seasonal employees serving the park and 
recreation program exclusively, or alternatively may advise as to any additional duties as should be 
performed by city employees of other departments in support of the park and recreation programs; 
and 



Memorandum 

7/15/2021  2 
 

(6)   Prepare and present to the Council annual budget recommendations for the support of 
the park and recreational programs of the city. 

 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Accept the two resignations, appoint the applicant to fill one of the three vacancies, and advertise to 
fill the remaining two vacancies.  

a. The park board could meet and conduct business with three members.  
b. Benefits of having an advisory board should be weighed – another voice outside of the city 

council, workload is shifted from the city council, additional community involvement, etc.  
 

2. Accept the two resignations and adopt a resolution which temporarily suspends filling vacancies and 
meetings of the board.  

a. When the city council is ready to reinstate the board, another resolution would need to be 
adopted stating such.  

b. No amendment to City Code would be required.  
c. The city council would absorb the duties of the park board.  

 
3. Accept the two resignations and repeal the ordinance which discusses the park board, in effect 

dissolving the board.  
a. No hearing is required to do this, and a simple majority vote of the city council is sufficient.  
b. If, at some point in the future, the city council wants to have another park board, the city 

council would need to adopt an ordinance reestablishing the board.  
c. The city council would absorb the duties of the park board.  

 
4. Other.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept Brockner and Fore’s resignations from the park board. 
Discuss options for the park board moving forward and direct staff appropriately.  
 
 
Attachments 
Brockner Resignation Letter 
Fore Resignation Letter 
Holland Application Form 
Mora City Code – Park Board 















Item No. 8d 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Beth Thorp, Community Development Director 
RE: Adoption of 2021 Trail Plan 

SUMMARY 
The City Council will consider adopting an updated Trail Plan. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
In conjunction with construction of the Spring Lake Trail and adoption of the Comprehensive Plan (comp plan) 
in 2009, the Park Board approved a Trail Plan in 2008 (attached, 2008 Trail Plan). The 2008 Trail Plan illustrated 
existing trail sections, four proposed trail sections ranked in order of priority, and the Vasaloppet ski trail. The 
Park Board’s goal when approving the 2008 Trail Plan was to create a looped trail system in and around the 
city. Much has changed since the Trail Plan was approved in 2008, including the city’s boundary and the city’s 
goals as they relate to pedestrian traffic. Therefore, staff has prepared and the Planning Commission has 
provided a recommendation on a draft 2021 Trail Plan. The draft plan illustrates existing and proposed trail 
sections, serving as concepts for consideration and basis for preparation of a more formal plan to be prepared 
by the city engineer. The commission’s goal is to include the updated Trail Plan in the current comp plan 
update. 

Proposed changes to the Trail Plan include and are shown numbered on the attached plan (2008 Trail Plan 
with proposed changes) as follows: 
1. A slight modification to the proposed trail on the west side of the city to bring the trail section inside the

city boundary.
2. A slight modification to the proposed trail on the east side of the city to create a more logical route rather 

than a diagonal “cut through”.
3. A rerouting of the proposed trail running through Fox Run. The 2008 route follows a planned sidewalk,

which is different than the city’s multi-purpose trail system. The proposed relocation would then also
eliminate the need for the proposed trail straight south of Fox Run.

4. Given that the city has grown significantly between the Snake River Bridge and 180th Avenue since 2008 
through annexation, there is tremendous need to extend the trail system south of the Snake River Bridge.
The proposed trail is shown creating a connection at the Snake River Bridge as well as an overall looped 
system in and around the city.

5. Removal of the Vasaloppet ski trail from the city’s trail plan. Like the Fox Run sidewalk, the ski trail is
different than the city’s multi-purpose trail system and does not need to be shown on the trail plan.

6. Addition of “Future Connection to Munger Trail” to demonstrate regional significance. Creating regional 
significance will assist in securing grant funding.

7. Modification to the legend to show the city’s existing trails as a solid red line instead of blue.



Memorandum 

7/13/2021  2 
 

Many of the proposed trail sections – on both the 2008 Trail Plan and the draft 2021 Trail Plan – are shown on 
private land. The Trail Plan is a guide for future trail development and is subject to change based on needs of 
the time and funding, and the city works with individual property owners as opportunities to expand the trail 
system become available. 
 
In light of current membership issues with the Park Board, the Planning Commission reviewed the draft 2021 
Trail Plan at its July 7th meeting in order to provide the City Council with a recommendation. Following a 
lengthy discussion about pedestrian safety, creating a looped system, and establishing regional significance, 
the commission recommended approval of the plan with minor changes (numbers 5-7 above). The 
commission’s recommended 2021 Trail Plan is attached (draft 2021 Trail Plan).  
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
1. Adopt the 2021 Trail Plan as presented or amended. The city engineer will prepare a formal plan based on 

the concepts included in the 2021 Trail Plan and it will be included in the Comprehensive Plan update. 
2. Do not adopt the 2021 Trail Plan and provide direction to staff. 
3. Table adoption of the 2021 Trail Plan for further consideration.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Motion to adopt the 2021 Trail Plan as presented or amended. 
 
 
Attachments 
2008 Trail Plan 
2008 Trail Plan with proposed changes 
Draft 2021 Trail Plan 







Ellin son Rd 

CR 6 

in 
C 

0 
.., 

¾! 

z 

.... 

Hwy 23 W 

Horde 

adc.nllr' 

Men NIie 8c:hooll + Wela 
:8 

I 

• a■ ■I■■ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

in 

:, 
C 

I 

I 

I 

I 

E 
0 

-..:.:No::;:rt�h"'-"ln..,d"'u_,st._ri-.,d 

I 

Ind ustrial 
Blvd 

I 
� Edwards Ave 

I 

I 
"O 

ca 

.!I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

City of Mora, MN 
DRAFT 2021 Trail Plan 

Existing Trail 
■ ., •••• ,. Proposed Trail 

This map is intended for illustrative purposes only 

and is not drawn to scale. 

July 2021 

I 

I 

I 

I 





Item No. 8e 

1 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Lindy Crawford, City Administrator 
RE: Kanabec County Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update – Request for Council Representative 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Kanabec County is beginning the process of updating their Comprehensive Land Use Plan (comp plan), and is 
seeking one Council Member representative from Mora to be part of their advisory committee. The position 
would be voluntary and would be responsible for attending three meetings to provide input on what topics 
should be focused on in the comp plan update. The initial kickoff meeting is Tuesday, July 27th at 9am at the 
courthouse, the other two meetings are tentatively set for the week of August 16th and the week of 
September 27th. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Staff recommends one Council Member volunteer for this opportunity to ensure there is a voice at the table 
on behalf of city of Mora. 
 
 
Attachments 
None 





Item No. 9a 

1 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: July 20, 2021 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Lindy Crawford, City Administrator 
RE: Housing and Redevelopment Authority Board Appointment 

 
SUMMARY 
The city council will discuss the Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) board vacancy and may appoint 
one person to fill the vacant position. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
At the direction of the city council, staff has been receiving applications to fill the vacant HRA board position. 
At the time of publication staff received one application– Roberta Folkestad. 
 
The applicant must be a resident of Mora, and more specifically a resident who participates in an HRA 
program. Folkestad fulfills both requirements, therefore, the city council should discuss the applicant and fill 
the vacancy. 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Appoint one applicant from the applications received. 
2. Do not appoint an applicant from the applications received and solicit additional applications. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Discuss the candidate to fill the vacant HRA board position and direct staff appropriately.  
 
 
Attachments 
Application Submission 













[Type text] 
 

 
June 2021 

 
During the month of June, 2021 Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office contract cars responded to or initiated 434 
calls for service within the City of Mora. The most frequent calls for service were Medical Emergencies (69), 
Traffic complaints/violations (60), and suspicious persons/occurrences (22). This is an increase of 60 calls for 
service in comparison to June, 2020. 
 
 
Fourteen arrests were made within the city of Mora 
 
The Mora community has experienced a rash of graffiti throughout the city. Deputies and KCSO Investigators 
are working diligently to find leads and network with surrounding cities experiencing the same damage to 
property.  
 
 
Contract deputies received continuing education/training in the following areas: 
 

- Serving those with Autism Spectrum Disorder 
- Ethical Use of Computers and Databases 
 

 
 
 
The Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office continues to proudly serve the citizens of Mora within Kanabec County. 
The Sheriff’s Office encourages any and all community members to contact our office with any questions, 
comments, or concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sergeant Dylan VanGorden  #3104 
 
 



Kanabec County Sheriff's Office

06/21 Total

911 Hang-ups-Abandoned-Open 
Line

18 18

Agency Assist 11 11

Alarms All (Home, Business, Bank, 
misc)

5 5

Animal Bites 1 1

Animal-All Other 11 11

Assault 5 5

ATV- Complaints-Accidents-Citations 2 2

Building Security Checks 1 1

Burglary 2 2

Child Custody Issues 2 2

Civil Assist 6 6

Crim Sex 1 1

Disorderly Conduct 6 6

Domestic Disturbance/Assaults 8 8

Drug calls - All 2 2

DTP 10 10

Escorts-Funerals, Races, etc 6 6

Fire- Mora Area Fire Calls 3 3

Fires - All Others 2 2

Foot Patrol 11 11

Found - animals, property, etc 6 6

Fraud 1 1

Garbage Dumping complaints 1 1

Harassing communications calls 2 2

Health and Safety 3 3

Hospice Deaths 3 3

Information and misc calls 22 22

Jail Medical 1 1

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 1 of 3

Printed On: 07/07/21 10:10CAD Summary Report



06/21 Total

Juvenile calls excluding tobacco, 
drugs, alcohol

4 4

Maltreatment 5 5

Medical Emergency 69 69

Meetings and Presentations 1 1

Missing Person(s) 1 1

Mora Ordinance Violations 3 3

Motorist Assist calls 2 2

Neighborhood Disputes 1 1

Noise - including loud music, parties, 
etc

5 5

Parking Violations 3 3

Public assist calls 12 12

Records checks 10 10

Road Hazards 5 5

Scams 2 2

Secure Helipad 12 12

Shoplifting complaints 4 4

Suicide threats-attempts 4 4

Suicide-Death 1 1

Suspicious- persons, vehicles, and 
occurrences

22 22

Theft-not vehicle 18 18

Threats 6 6

Traffic / Driving complaints 8 8

Traffic Accident 3 3

Traffic Violation 49 49

Trespassing complaints 1 1

Unwanted person 6 6

Vandalism exc mailboxes 1 1

Violation of Court Order 3 3

Warrant Entry and Arrests 4 4

Weather - Monthly Test 1 1

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 2 of 3

Printed On: 07/07/21 10:10CAD Summary Report



06/21 Total

Welfare Check 16 16

Total 434 434

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 3 of 3

Printed On: 07/07/21 10:10CAD Summary Report



 
 

 
Mora Area Fire Department Monthly Update 
 
 

June 2021  

The Mora Area Fire Department was involved with the following fire calls, training and 
education, maintenance, and miscellaneous in the past month. 

Fire Calls (Paid) 

 6-7-21 canceled in rough  
 6-8-21 leaking propane tank 
 6-9-21 grass/ power pole fire  
 6-15-21 illegal campfire  
 6-15-21 mutual aid OFG  
 6-24-21 fire alarm 
 6-25-21 wall on fire 
 6-27-21 power pole fire 
 6-27-21 lost person search  

Training and Education (Paid) 

 6-7-21 basement fire simulator  
 6-21-21 meeting and relief  

Maintenance (not paid) 

 All trucks done 2x 

Training, Education, and Miscellaneous (not Paid) 

 ISO review- new rating should be here in a few months  

  

 

 





 

Planning Commission - 07/07/2021  Page 1 of 5 

City of Mora, MN 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Meeting Minutes 
 

July 7, 2021 
 

Present: Carmen Finn, Chad Gramentz and Jake Mathison 
Absent: Todd Sjoberg and Sara Treiber 
Staff Present: Community Development Director Beth Thorp 
Also Present:  
 
1. Call to Order. Vice Chair Gramentz called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 

 
2. Roll Call. 

Finn – Present  
Gramentz – Present 
Mathison – Present 
Sjoberg – Absent (excused) 
Treiber – Absent (unexcused) 

 
3. Adopt Agenda. Motion by Mathison, second by Finn to adopt the July 7, 2021 agenda as presented. 

All present voted aye, motion carried. 
 

4. Approval of Minutes. Motion by Mathison, second by Finn to approve the May 10, 2021 meeting 
minutes as presented. All present voted aye, motion carried. 

 
5. Public Hearings.  

None 
 

6. Open Forum. No members of the public were present for open forum. 
 

7. New Business. 
None 
 

8. Old Business.  
a. Comprehensive Plan Update. Thorp presented the commission with the most current draft 

of the Comprehensive Plan (comp plan) update, explaining that, in addition to any 
comments received from the commission, there were two issues that needed to be 
considered by the commission, including information pertaining to seasonal traffic on 
Highway 65/23 and the trail plan. Thorp shared that Mathison would be providing changes 
to the Paradise Theatre page in the Community Assets appendix. Gramentz asked if two 
“Proposed Long-Term Improvements in Mora” maps, originally developed as part of the 
2005 Highway 23 & 65 Corridor Study completed by MnDOT and included in the 2009 comp 
plan, would be included in the current update; Thorp stated that the maps would be 
included and were shown as Maps 1 and 2 in the draft comp plan. Thorp explained that the 
maps were developed by MnDOT to show long-term improvements to the highway corridor 
and included full access intersections, with potential for traffic signals, at Union 
Street/Division Street and Clark Street; Gramentz spoke about the proposed closure of the 



 

Planning Commission - 07/07/2021  Page 2 of 5 

frontage road system, shown on the maps, and the concept of creating backage roads. 
Commissioners discussed the benefit of backage roads with Gramentz explaining that they 
provided more controlled access which would improve overall traffic flow through the 
corridor. Thorp provided the commission with a copy of the two maps to aid in their 
discussion. Thorp commented that before any of the proposed improvements were 
implemented, it would require consideration by the current City Council and public 
meetings. Related to the discussion, Thorp shared that she was having conversations with 
representatives of a property owner with land located near the intersection of Division 
Street and Highway 65 and they had expressed interest in a traffic signal at that intersection. 
Thorp went on to explain that she didn’t foresee the proposed development alone triggering 
installation of a traffic signal but referred the representatives to MnDOT. Thorp stated that 
the current draft included many updates to tables, updated language pertaining to schools, 
and the addition of photos and formatting. Focusing on Graph 10 – Seasonal Traffic 
Variation-Northbound Highways 23 & 65 between Portage Avenue and Clark Street (2005) – 
Thorp informed the commission that, because the information was provided as part of the 
2005 corridor study, current information was not readily available from MnDOT. Thorp 
asked the commission to consider their preference for Graph 10, explaining that the graph 
could remain in the updated comp plan as-is or it could be deleted or the city could pay the 
City Engineer to update the table at an estimated cost of $1,500-$2,000. After some 
discussion the consensus of the commission was to delete the graph from the comp plan 
update, agreeing that the 16-year old data was no longer valuable for the purposes of the 
comp plan. Thorp added that, even after being deleted from the comp plan, the information 
would always be available as part of the 2005 corridor study. Commissioners discussed that 
the draft comp plan update provided Average Daily Traffic Volumes and this information 
would be sufficient for long-range planning purposes. Thorp then requested that the 
commission focus attention on the trail plan, explaining that the current plan was approved 
in 2008 when the city was significantly smaller and the city’s goals for pedestrian traffic 
were different. Thorp presented the commission with a draft 2021 Trail Plan and explained 
the proposed changes, including minor rerouting of two proposed trail sections; elimination 
of sidewalk within the Fox Run development from the trail plan and addition of proposed 
trail immediately south of the Fox Run development; and, the addition of proposed trail 
south of the Snake River Bridge serving properties on both sides of Highway 65. Gramentz 
suggested creating shorter trail loops within the larger looped trail system so that users 
didn’t have to use the trail in an “out and back” fashion; Thorp suggested that, until the trail 
system is further developed and shorter loops can be created, the city’s sidewalk system be 
used to serve as trail connections to create shorter loops. Mathison shared that his primary 
concern for the updated trail plan was safety improvements at the Snake River Bridge; Finn 
echoed Mathison’s concerns based on her knowledge of Recovering Hope Treatment Center 
residents walking across the bridge daily. Mathison added that the portion of the city 
located south of the Snake River Bridge would develop further and there would be even 
greater need for safe pedestrian access across the river. Gramentz shared that showing 
connection to generators (schools, hospitals, stores, etc.) and regional connection were 
both crucial for grant funding, and suggested that the trail plan identify the location where 
the city’s proposed trail could provide a connection to the Munger Trail at the city’s eastern 
boundary. Finn questioned why the Vasaloppet ski trail was included on the city’s trail map; 
after some discussion the consensus of the commission was to remove it from the trail plan. 
Mathison suggested, with the deletion of the Vasaloppet ski trail from the trail plan, that the 
city’s existing trail be shown as a solid red line rather than blue. Motion by Mathison, 



 

Planning Commission - 07/07/2021  Page 3 of 5 

second by Finn to recommend approval of the draft 2021 Trail Plan as presented and subject 
to the following three changes: deletion of the Vasaloppet ski trail from the trail plan; 
addition of reference to a future connection to the Munger Trail; and, a change to the 
legend showing the city’s existing trail as a solid red line rather than blue. All present voted 
aye, motion carried. Thorp shared that the commission was nearing the end of the comp 
plan update process and that the commission would begin discussing a timeline for 
adoption at its next meeting. Gramentz shared that Kanabec County was just beginning 
work on a comp plan with the goal of completing it by mid-November 2021.  

 
9. Reports.  

a. NorthStar RE LLC – 1200 North Industrial Road. Thorp shared that NorthStar RE LLC had 
completed all dirt work and the final grading had been accepted by the City Engineer. Thorp 
added that NorthStar RE LLC seeded the property, but, given the current drought conditions, 
it would be an on-going effort to establish landscaping. Commission members and Thorp 
discussed current business activity taking place at the facility. 

b. Residential and Non-Residential Daycare Facilities in Residential Districts. Thorp presented 
the commission with a written summary of permitted and conditional daycare-related uses 
allowed within residential districts, explaining that she had become aware of former single 
family homes purchased for the sole purpose of providing non-residential daycare services. 
Thorp explained that the difference between a “residential daycare facility” and a “non-
residential daycare facility” was that the residential facility included a permanent resident 
whereas the non-residential facility did not include any resident. Thorp further explained 
that non-residential daycare facilities were allowed by conditional use in the R-3 District but 
the small residentially platted lots were often too small to accommodate the off-street 
parking required by the zoning code. Mathison questioned how the city defined residency; 
Thorp explained that in the most recent situation she required proof of residency with a 
copy of a valid driver’s license and voter registration. Board members discussed issues 
related to parking and traffic during times of daycare drop-off and pick-up, with Mathison 
sharing from his personal experience that at his family’s daycare there were typically no 
more than two or three vehicles dropping-off or picking-up at the same time. Thorp asked 
the commission if there was interest in exploring options for amending the zoning code to 
more easily allow single family homes to be used as non-residential daycare facilities. 
Mathison inquired about possible negative impacts of allowing non-residential daycare 
facilities in residential districts; Gramentz responded that residential streets were designed 
for low volume traffic and the potential for multiple daycare facilities in a concentrated area 
could lead to traffic concerns. Finn questioned how non-residential daycare facilities could 
be licensed in a residential area, explaining from her professional experience that non-
residential facilities had much stricter requirements that could not necessarily be met in a 
residential structure / on a small residential lot; Thorp responded that these particular non-
residential facilities were allowed by MN statute and licensed by the county as “special 
family daycare homes” which were different than traditional non-residential daycare 
centers such as facility at Recovering Hope Treatment Center. Mathison asked if the number 
of non-residential daycare facilities could be capped within a defined area; in response, 
commissioners and Thorp discussed the dire need for more daycare slots in the community 
and difficulties in monitoring the number of facilities. Gramentz suggested requiring that all 
daycare facilities obtain a conditional use permit so that the city could evaluate traffic 
concerns on a case by case basis; Mathison commented that certain city streets were 
designed to handle more traffic than others. Commission members and Thorp discussed off-



 

Planning Commission - 07/07/2021  Page 4 of 5 

street parking requirements for daycare facilities, understanding that it would be extremely 
difficult for parking areas to be created on small residential lots. Thorp commented that, in 
her opinion, the city’s off-street parking requirements were the biggest obstacle for non-
residential daycare facilities in residential districts. Commissioners discussed the idea of 
requiring the street on which non-residential daycare facilities were located to be wide 
enough to accommodate a parking lane. Mathison commented that he believed the 
commission was obligated to explore the daycare issue further in an objective manner in 
order to find a remedy that was fair and consistent. Gramentz again suggested that 
conditional use permits be required for all daycare facilities, including residential and non-
residential; Thorp mentioned some of the challenges, including enforcement and lack of 
interest from the local licensing organization to include the city in the licensing process. 
Thorp added that the Kanabec County EDA had become heavily involved in daycare related 
issues and the executive director had offered to coordinate further discussion between the 
city and the licensing organization to see if there were opportunities for increased 
cooperation. Commissioners and Thorp discussed options for creating distinctions between 
homes used for non-residential daycare facilities and daycare centers within the zoning 
code, such as differing off-street parking requirements based on licensed capacity (i.e. those 
licensed for less than 15 would not be required to provide off-street parking). Gramentz 
suggested requiring all daycare facilities to obtain an interim use permit so that there would 
be a sunset (end date or triggering event) to the permit creating an opportunity to review 
the use and its impacts before the use resumed operation. Commissioners recapped ideas 
that they wanted to explore further, including: the use of interim use permits for all daycare 
facilities; amending the off-street parking requirements based on licensed capacity; and, 
allowing non-residential daycare facilities in the R-1 District if the structure, previously used 
as a single family home, could revert back to a single family home if and when the non-
residential daycare facility use ceased. Finn commented that daycare facilities were a 
tremendous asset to the community and needed to be supported. Mathison, agreeing with 
Finn’s comment, also acknowledged the current shortage of housing and the need to 
maintain the housing supply. The commission directed Thorp to bring proposals for text 
amendments to an upcoming meeting for further review and consideration; the commission 
also commented that it would be valuable to have daycare providers attend the meeting to 
provide input. 

c. Torrey Property. Thorp again shared that the Torrey property, located at the southeast 
corner of Division Street and Highway 65, would be going on the market soon. Thorp shared 
that the property had a split zoning of B-2 General Business District and R-3 Multiple 
Dwelling District, and, if and when the property sold, the Planning Commission would likely 
be involved in various land use requests. 

d. Development Prospects. The commission discussed various properties and development 
prospects, including the Bartelma property, the former Shopko building, the former 
Buzzano’s building, the Mora Tobacco & E-Cig, and Neighborhood National Bank’s property 
at the intersection of Union Street and Highway 65. 

e. Staffing Updates. Thorp shared that Administrative Services Director Natasha Segelstrom 
started with the city / MMU on July 6th, and, following the resignation of the city’s state 
designated Building Official, Marshall Lind, from the Braham-Milaca JPA, the city would be 
exploring options for new service to fill the needs of the building department. 
Commissioners and Thorp discussed the process for Building Official Caleb Christenson to 
become a certified building official, thereby eliminating the need to contract for additional 



 

Planning Commission - 07/07/2021  Page 5 of 5 

services. Thorp commented that the transition would not disrupt building inspection 
services offered by the city. 
 

10. Adjournment. Motion by Mathison, second by Finn to adjourn.  All present voted aye, motion 
carried and the meeting was adjourned at 6:53 pm. 
 
 

 
____________________________   ATTEST: ______________________________ 
Chad Gramentz       Beth Thorp 
Vice Chair       Community Development Director 
  


	Agenda Template
	City of Mora Kanabec County, Minnesota

	Item 4a - Draft CC-PUC WS Minutes 06142021
	Item 4b - Draft CC-HRA WS Minutes 06152021
	Item 4c - Draft CC Minutes 06152021
	6. Special Business:
	a. Resolution in Support – County-wide Broadband Internet: The council reviewed information presented regarding a county-wide broadband effort for high-speed internet services. The council approved the following motion because of the need for high-spe...
	RESOLUTION NO. 2021-623 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA PROVIDING SUPPORT FOR BROADBAND (HIGH SPEED) INTERNET SERVIICES  IN KANABEC COUNTY, MINNESOTA (see attached)
	7. Public Hearings: There were no public hearings.
	8. New Business
	9. Old Business: There were no old business items to discuss.
	10. Communications: The following communications were reviewed.
	c. KCSO Monthly Report – May 2021
	11. Reports

	Item 4d - June 2021 City Claims List
	Item 4e - Gambling Permit Lions Club
	Item 4f - 1 Staff Report Accept Donations
	Item 4f - 2 Res 2021-721 Accept Donations
	Item 4g - 1 Letter of Resignation- FF Staff Report
	Item 4g - 2 P.Morgan Resignation Letter
	Item 4h - 1 Business License Renewal 2021-22 Staff Report
	Item 4i - Gamblilng Permit MN DHA- Snake River
	Item 4j - 1 2021 Fly-In Special Event Permit Request Staff Report
	Item 4j - 2 Fly-in Event Permit Application
	Item 4k - 1 2021 Fall Fest Special Event Permit Request Staff Report
	Item 4k - 2 Fall Fest Event Permit Application
	Item 8a - 1 KCSO 2022 Law Enforcement Contract Staff Report
	Item 8a - 2 KCSO Contract & Capital Budget 2022
	Item 8a - 2 LE contract budget 2022.pdf
	Item 8a - 3 LE Capital Budget 2022.pdf
	Sheet1


	Item 8b - 1 BO Services Agreement Staff Report
	Item 8b - 2 Mid-MN Insepctions Proposal
	Item 8c - 1 Park Board Discussion Staff Report
	Item 8c - 2 C.Brockner Park Board Resignation
	Item 8c - 3 J.Fore Park Board Resignation
	Item 8c - 4 Park Board Applicant_Redacted
	Item 8c - 5 Park Board City Code
	Item 8d - 1 Trail Plan Staff Report
	Item 8d - 2 Trail Plan Attachments
	Item 8a - 3 2008 Trail Plan_As Originally Prepared by BT
	Item 8a - 4 2008 Trail Plan with Proposed Changes
	Item 8a - 5 Trail Plan_DRAFT_July 2021 Model (1)

	Item 8e - 1 County Comp Plan Council Rep Staff Report
	Item 9a - 1 HRA Vacancy Staff Report
	Item 9a - 2 HRA Applicant _Redacted
	Item 10a - 1 KCAS Correspondence
	Item 10b - KCSO Monthly Report - June 2021
	June report 2021.pdf
	June 2021 Totals.pdf

	Item 10c - MAFD Monthly Report - June 2021
	Item 10d - Planning Commission Meeting Minutes July 7, 2021
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



